



Economic and Social Council

Distr.: General
13 July 2020

Original: English

Economic Commission for Europe

Inland Transport Committee

Global Forum for Road Traffic Safety

Eighty-first session

Geneva, 21-25 September 2020

Item 3 (b) of the provisional agenda

Convention on Road Traffic (1968):

Driving Permits

Appendix B Proposed Amendments to 1968 Convention in addition to those for the amalgamated approach

Submitted by the Experts of Belgium, Brazil, Canada, France, Luxembourg, Russian Federation, United Kingdom of, Great Britain and Northern Ireland, Fédération Internationale de l'Automobile and International Organization for Standardization

This document contains Appendix B of ECE/TRANS/WP.1/2018/1/Rev.3. That is, the proposed amendments to 1968 Convention in addition to those for the amalgamated approach. Proposed amendments are presented in bold for additions, and strikethrough for deletions.

Appendix B

Annex 6

Domestic driving permit

8. The categories of vehicles for which the driving permit may be valid are the following:
- AM. Two-wheel and three-wheel vehicles with a maximum design speed of not more than 45km/h and light quadricycles;**
 - A1. Motorcycles with a cubic capacity not exceeding 125 cm³ and a power not exceeding 11 kW (light motorcycles);**
 - A2. Motorcycles with or without a sidecar of a power not exceeding 35kW and with a power/weight ratio not exceeding 0.2kW/kg and not derived from a vehicle of more than double its power;**
 - A. Motorcycles;
 - B1. Motor tricycles and quadricycles;**
 - B. Motor vehicles, other than those in category A, having a permissible maximum mass not exceeding 3,500 kg and not more than eight seats in addition to the driver's seat; or motor vehicles of category B coupled to a trailer the permissible maximum mass of which does not exceed 750 kg; or motor vehicles of category B coupled to a trailer the permissible maximum mass of which exceeds 750 kg but does not exceed the unladen mass of the motor vehicle, where the combined permissible maximum mass of the vehicles so coupled does not exceed 3,500 kg;
 - C1. Motor vehicles, with the exception of those in category D, the permissible maximum mass of which exceeds 3,500 kg but does not exceed 7,500 kg; or motor vehicles of category C1 coupled to a trailer, the permissible maximum mass of which does not exceed 750 kg;**
 - C. Motor vehicles, other than those in category D, having a permissible maximum mass exceeding 3,500 kg; or motor vehicles of category C coupled to a trailer the permissible maximum mass of which does not exceed 750 kg;
 - D1. Motor vehicles used for the carriage of passengers and having more than 8 seats in addition to the driver's seat but not more than 16 seats in addition to the driver's seat; or motor vehicles of category D1 coupled to a trailer, the permissible maximum mass of which does not exceed 750 kg;**
 - D. Motor vehicles used for the carriage of passengers and having more than eight seats in addition to the driver's seat; or motor vehicles of category D coupled to a trailer the permissible maximum mass of which does not exceed 750 kg;
 - BE. Motor vehicles of category B coupled to a trailer, the permissible maximum mass of which exceeds 750 kg and exceeds the unladen mass of the motor vehicle; or motor vehicles of category B coupled to a trailer the permissible maximum mass of which exceeds 750 kg, where the combined permissible maximum mass of the vehicles so coupled exceeds 3,500 kg;
 - C1E. Motor vehicles of category C1 coupled to a trailer the permissible maximum mass of which exceeds 750 kg but does not exceed the unladen mass of the motor vehicle, where the combined permissible maximum mass of the vehicles so coupled does not exceed 12,000 kg;**
 - CE. Motor vehicles of category C coupled to a trailer whose permissible maximum mass exceeds 750 kg;
 - D1E. Motor vehicles of category D1 coupled to a trailer, not used for the carriage of persons, the permissible maximum mass of which exceeds 750 kg but does not**

exceed the unladen mass of the motor vehicle, where the combined permissible maximum mass of the vehicles so coupled does not exceed 12,000 kg.

DE. Motor vehicles of category D coupled to a trailer whose permissible maximum mass exceeds 750 kg.

~~9. Under categories A, B, C, CE, D and DE, domestic legislation may introduce the following subcategories of vehicles for which the driving permit may be valid:~~

~~A1. — Motorcycles with a cubic capacity not exceeding 125 cm³ and a power not exceeding 11 kW (light motorcycles);~~

~~B1. — Motor tricycles and quadricycles;~~

~~C1. — Motor vehicles, with the exception of those in category D, the permissible maximum mass of which exceeds 3,500 kg but does not exceed 7,500 kg; or motor vehicles of subcategory C1 coupled to a trailer, the permissible maximum mass of which does not exceed 750 kg;~~

~~D1. — Motor vehicles used for the carriage of passengers and having more than 8 seats in addition to the driver's seat but not more than 16 seats in addition to the driver's seat; or motor vehicles of subcategory D1 coupled to a trailer, the permissible maximum mass of which does not exceed 750 kg;~~

~~C1E. — Motor vehicles of subcategory C1 coupled to a trailer the permissible maximum mass of which exceeds 750 kg but does not exceed the unladen mass of the motor vehicle, where the combined permissible maximum mass of the vehicles so coupled does not exceed 12,000 kg;~~

~~D1E. — Motor vehicles of subcategory D1 coupled to a trailer, not used for the carriage of persons, the permissible maximum mass of which exceeds 750 kg but does not exceed the unladen mass of the motor vehicle, where the combined permissible maximum mass of the vehicles so coupled does not exceed 12,000 kg.~~

9. Domestic legislation may introduce categories and subcategories of vehicle other than those listed above. The designations of such categories and subcategories ~~should~~ **shall** not resemble the symbols used in the Convention to designate categories ~~and~~ subcategories of vehicles; another type of print ~~should~~ **shall** also be used.

10. The categories (~~subcategories~~) of vehicles for which the permit is valid shall be represented by the pictograms in the table below.

Category Code/ Pictogram		Subcategory Category Code/ Pictogram	
A		AM	
		A1	
		A2	
B		B1	
C		C1	
D		D1	
BE			
CE		C1E	
DE		D1E	

11. The following special endorsement of restrictions applicable to the driver or the vehicle shall be represented on the permit by the pictograms in the table below:

Code	Definition	Pictogram
01	Licence holder requires eyesight correction and/or protection	
03	Licence holder requires prosthetic device for the limbs	
78	Licence holder restricted to vehicles with automatic transmission	<i>AT</i>
S05	Licence holder restricted to vehicles adapted for physically disabled	

Annex 7

International driving permit

10. The categories of vehicles for which the driving permit may be valid are the following:
- AM. Two-wheel and three-wheel vehicles with a maximum design speed of not more than 45km/h and light quadricycles;**
 - A1. Motorcycles with a cubic capacity not exceeding 125 cm³ and a power not exceeding 11 kW (light motorcycles);**
 - A2. Motorcycles with or without a sidecar of a power not exceeding 35kW and with a power/weight ratio not exceeding 0.2kW/kg and not derived from a vehicle of more than double its power;**
 - A. Motorcycles;
 - B1. Motor tricycles and quadricycles;**
 - B. Motor vehicles, other than those in category A, having a permissible maximum mass not exceeding 3,500 kg and not more than eight seats in addition to the driver's seat; or motor vehicles of category B coupled to a trailer the permissible maximum mass of which does not exceed 750 kg; or motor vehicles of category B coupled to a trailer the permissible maximum mass of which exceeds 750 kg but does not exceed the unladen mass of the motor vehicle, where the combined permissible maximum mass of the vehicles so coupled does not exceed 3,500 kg;
 - C1. Motor vehicles, with the exception of those in category D, the permissible maximum mass of which exceeds 3,500 kg but does not exceed 7,500 kg; or motor vehicles of category C1 coupled to a trailer, the permissible maximum mass of which does not exceed 750 kg;**
 - C. Motor vehicles, other than those in category D, having a permissible maximum mass exceeding 3,500 kg; or motor vehicles of category C coupled to a trailer the permissible maximum mass of which does not exceed 750 kg;
 - D1. Motor vehicles used for the carriage of passengers and having more than 8 seats in addition to the driver's seat but not more than 16 seats in addition to the driver's seat; or motor vehicles of category D1 coupled to a trailer, the permissible maximum mass of which does not exceed 750 kg;**
 - D. Motor vehicles used for the carriage of passengers and having more than eight seats in addition to the driver's seat; or motor vehicles of category D coupled to a trailer the permissible maximum mass of which does not exceed 750 kg;
 - BE. Motor vehicles of category B coupled to a trailer, the permissible maximum mass of which exceeds 750 kg and exceeds the unladen mass of the motor vehicle; or motor vehicles of category B coupled to a trailer the permissible maximum mass of which exceeds 750 kg, where the combined permissible maximum mass of the vehicles so coupled exceeds 3,500 kg;**
 - C1E. Motor vehicles of category C1 coupled to a trailer the permissible maximum mass of which exceeds 750 kg but does not exceed the unladen mass of the motor vehicle, where the combined permissible maximum mass of the vehicles so coupled does not exceed 12,000 kg;**
 - CE. Motor vehicles of category C coupled to a trailer whose permissible maximum mass exceeds 750 kg;**
 - D1E. Motor vehicles of category D1 coupled to a trailer, not used for the carriage of persons, the permissible maximum mass of which exceeds 750 kg but does not exceed the unladen mass of the motor vehicle, where the combined permissible maximum mass of the vehicles so coupled does not exceed 12,000 kg.**

DE. Motor vehicles of category D coupled to a trailer whose permissible maximum mass exceeds 750 kg.

9. ~~Under categories A, B, C, CE, D and DE, domestic legislation may introduce the following subcategories of vehicles for which the driving permit may be valid:~~

~~A1. — Motorcycles with a cubic capacity not exceeding 125 cm³ and a power not exceeding 11 kW (light motorcycles);~~

~~B1. — Motor tricycles and quadricycles;~~

~~C1. — Motor vehicles, with the exception of those in category D, the permissible maximum mass of which exceeds 3,500 kg but does not exceed 7,500 kg; or motor vehicles of subcategory C1 coupled to a trailer, the permissible maximum mass of which does not exceed 750 kg;~~

~~D1. — Motor vehicles used for the carriage of passengers and having more than 8 seats in addition to the driver's seat but not more than 16 seats in addition to the driver's seat; or motor vehicles of subcategory D1 coupled to a trailer, the permissible maximum mass of which does not exceed 750 kg;~~

~~C1E. — Motor vehicles of subcategory C1 coupled to a trailer the permissible maximum mass of which exceeds 750 kg but does not exceed the unladen mass of the motor vehicle, where the combined permissible maximum mass of the vehicles so coupled does not exceed 12,000 kg;~~

~~D1E. — Motor vehicles of subcategory D1 coupled to a trailer, not used for the carriage of persons, the permissible maximum mass of which exceeds 750 kg but does not exceed the unladen mass of the motor vehicle, where the combined permissible maximum mass of the vehicles so coupled does not exceed 12,000 kg.~~

11. Domestic legislation may introduce categories and subcategories of vehicle other than those listed above. The designations of such categories and subcategories ~~should~~ **shall** not resemble the symbols used in the Convention to designate categories ~~and~~ subcategories of vehicles; another type of print ~~should~~ **shall** also be used.

12. The categories (~~subcategories~~) of vehicles for which the permit is valid shall be represented by the pictograms in the table below.

Category Code/ Pictogram	Subcategory-Category Code/ Pictogram
A 	AM 
	A1 
	A2 
B 	B1 
C 	C1 
D 	D1 

Category Code/ Pictogram	Subcategory Category Code/ Pictogram
BE 	
CE 	C1E 
DE 	D1E 

12. The following special endorsement of restrictions applicable to the driver or the vehicle shall be represented on the permit by the pictograms in the table below:

Code	Definition	Pictogram
01	Licence holder requires eyesight correction and/or protection	
03	Licence holder requires prosthetic device for the limbs	
78	Licence holder restricted to vehicles with automatic transmission	<i>AT</i>
S05	Licence holder restricted to vehicles adapted for physically disabled	